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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known; PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Williams House was originally a two-story frame house 
built in the Queen Anne style, that is with a stress on 
irregularity of plan and massing. It today comprises part of 
the east wing of the Manhattan Hotel. The southeast corner of 
the original structure has had the least modification and still 
appears much as it did when constructed. This is the portion 
of the house where verandas and entries were located. The 
principal entry into the parlor is within the veranda and set 
at a diagonal. There is an auxilliary entrance into a small 
hall off of the parlor. Both doors are single with colored 
glass in the transoms. All windows are double-hung sash with 
colored glass borders in the upper half. Although the house 
has asbestos siding, it was originally clapboard with shingle 
infill in the gables. The roof is pitched with cross gables 
and an octagonal tower (now truncated) set between gables in 
the southeast corner. The base of the tower above the second 
floor level is also covered with the same fish-scale shingles. 
The house has all of the jigsaw trim typical of the period, 
paling posts defining the veranda, hood mould over corner door 
at second level and bargeboards resting on brackets in the 
principal gables. The latter is a feature not commonly seen 
in Florida. In addition, there are paired or tripled glazed 
openings in .e,ach of the principal gables set into a common 
surround.

In addition to the removal of the corner balcony on the 
southeast, the addition of jalousie windows and doors and the 
asbestos siding, there have been numerous alterations to the 
interior of the building. Shortly after the purchase of the 
building-by the Manhattan Hotel Company in 1906, the long west 
wing which comprises most of the Manhattan Hotel was added. 
Further alterations included the addition of two bathrooms and 
interior partitions in the west wing in 1946, the addition of a 
laundry room in 1954, the installation of 5/8 sheetrock on the 
interior in 1963 and the partitioning of parts of the porch in 
1964.

Although portions of the original Williams Mansion have 
been subdivided into apartments, the two first floor parlors 
and entry hall have been left intact. Both parlors contain 
elaborate mahogany mantles with bevelled mirrors above and 
the larger parlor contains the stair with mahogany banister. 
Both parlors have stenciled decoration beneath the cornice.

Due to constant use and maintenance, the original house 
and hotel additions are in good condition today.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

John Constantine Williams, born in Detroit, Michigan in 
1817, first visited the Pinellas Peninsula in 1875. Shortly 
thereafter he purchased 1,600 acres from the State of Florida 
and W. F. Sperling. Williams'energies were devoted to bringing 
a railroad into the area and his efforts led him into nego­ 
tiations with the Orange Belt Railroad, headed by a Russian 
exile, Peter A. Demens (Petrovich Demenscheff). Demens was 
searching for a terminus on the Gulf and he finally reached 
an agreement with Williams to develop a townsite.

In 1888, the townsite was surveyed and platted by A. L. 
Hunt, chief engineer for the Orange Belt Railroad. It is 
said that Williams is the one who insisted on the unusually 
wide streets (100 feet) and a large central park (Williams 
Park). The same year Williams built the first hotel in St. 
Petersburg, the Detroit, named for his birthplace. It still 
stands, although drastically modified, at 215 Central Avenue.

Williams, who is credited with the founding of the City 
of St. Petersburg, befan construction on his Fifth Avenue 
home in 1891. He died in April of 1892, after having lived in 
the house for a very brief period. Not only was it the finest 
Victorian dwelling in St. Petersburg at the time of its 
construction, but it is today the last surviving example of 
recognizable Queen Anne architecture and one of the oldest 
houses in the city. ™.. _
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As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na­ 
tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 
89-665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion 
in the National Register and certify that it has been 
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forth by the National Park Service. The recommended 
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Addendum to Manhattan Hotel nomination as per National Register 
staff request:

Description of west wing, added 1906.

Although added some fifteen years after the construction 
of the Williams House, the hotel wing is stylistically and 
visually in keeping with--the original building. The wing 
is of frame construction, three stories in height with a 
mansard roof and multiple brick chimneys. Double-hung sash 
windows occur singly and in pairs-all with screens on the 
outside. There is a gallery at ground level with a pent 
roof above slender square columns. There are several 
entrances into the wing from the gallery or arcade as well 
as from the house proper.

The Manhattan Hotel has accomodated guests since the 
addition of the west wing, at which time it ceased to 
be a private residence. The hotel has always been a 
small "family" type opertion serving older guests who 
come to St. Petersburg and the Manhattan on a regular 
basis. The hotel is operated by Mrs. Alma E. Ward who 
lives on the premises, administrates to a small staff and 
keeps the building in good repair.


